The Richlands Town Council held a “Regular Meeting™ on November 1%, 2022, in the Richlands
Council Chambers at 6:00 pm with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury
Town Manager: John O’Daniel
Town Clerk: Rebekah Hackworth

Council Members: Doug Ratliff, Jeff Hurst, Rick Wood, Kristen Thompson-Whitt, Seth
White, and Laura Mollo.

Town Attorney: Michael Thomas
Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Cury- We have before us an agenda, before we move forward, under scheduled public
comments we have Aaron Thomason. Is Aaron Thomason here? Okay, well he may show up
later. Is there anyone in the audience that would like to speak under unscheduled public
comments? That is a 3-minute time frame. Okay, so if everyone would please add Blake Ray
under unscheduled public comments. Since there is no one else we will move on.

Are there any additions or deletions to the agenda?

Seth- Mr. Mayor I have a question, under agenda items #8 b, we have Mr. Taylor here to address
some concerns. Will we be able to ask questions after his presentation?

Mayor Cury- Tim, would you mind coming forward? Are you going to take questions after your
presentation?

Tim- 1 wasn’t really planning on it, but I can. I would like to ask a special favor of you all. If you
all will let me, get through my presentation without interrupting me. Let me finish without any
interruptions. [ would like for it to go on record what I am saying then I will answer your
questions.

Seth- I don’t think he is going to have any problems with that. If we are making an exception to
put a citizen under agenda items, according to the charter, we are allowed to ask questions. So, 1
was just making sure we were allowed to ask questions, or I was going to move him to a
scheduled comment. But I am good with that.

Mayor Cury- Okay, is that to everyone’s satisfaction?

Mémbers of council- Yes.

Jeff- Mr. Mayor under #8, can we add f for Rec Park Request Update? /
Mayor Cury- Okay, did everyone get that?

Laura- Mr. Mayor, we also need the electric relief update.

Mayor Cury- Okay, we will add that under #8 and call it g. Electric Relief Discussion.

Okay, are there any other changes to the agenda that need to be addressed at this time, members
of Council? To recap, we have added Blake Ray under unscheduled public comments, and we
have added under #8 f Rec Park Request Update and under #8 g Electric Relief Discussions. Is
there a motion to accept the agenda as amended?

Kristen- | make a motion that we accept the agenda as amended. Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kiisten- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- Thank you. Okay, so we have before us the consent agenda, which is the
authorization to pay the bills for October. We also have the minutes from Public Hearing and the



Regular Scheduled Meeting for October the 11th, 2022. Are there anything that needs to be
addressed on the bills or in either of these sets of minutes?

Laura- Mr. Mayor, I am missing half of my packet. All the even pages to the minutes are
missing.

Heather- Seth let me know that right before the meeting and I was working on recopying those
actually before the meeting started, although we only have three thus far. They should be ready.

Mayor Cury- [ would suggest that until we all have the full sets that we set the Minutes aside for
approval. With council’s approval, I will simply ask for a motion to authorize payment of bills.

Seth- [ make a motion to authorize the Town Manager to pay the bills for October. Jeff seconded
the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- I would suggest that we come back to the minutes as to keep the meeting moving.
Is Mr. Thomason here? Aaron Thomason? Okay, he doesn’t seem to be here tonight.

Okay, it looks like we have the minutes before us. Does everyone have the complete set of
minutes? Would you like to take a few minutes here to look over the minutes to make sure they
met the satisfaction of the council?

Members of Council- Yes.

Laura- On page 28, I said “FOIA” laws not “FORA” laws.

Mayor Cury- Okay, Bekah, can you correct that?

Bekah- Yes Sir.

Rick- I make a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- We are now on Roman Numeral VI- Scheduled Public Comments by Aaron
Thomason. I know Aaron and 1 do not see him. We are sorry Mr. Thomason maybe next time.
Moving on to Unscheduled Public Comments by Blake Ray.

Blake- Mayor Cury, Members of Council, you guys have heard me say a lot that we have about
five years to fix the problem that is going to happen. Here is why, a $30 trillion wealth transfer is
coming over the next decade to decade and a half. $9 trillion of it is expected to move out by
2027, from baby boomers to millennials. So, typically, it's going to be about ages 18 to 32. Those
are the people that are going to get that money. The average median household age between men
and women in Richlands is 48 years old. There's $459 million on deposit right now in Richlands
across seven institutions. Do you think that money is going to stay? It's not. It is going to leave.
Five of you have experience in running businesses, and you know that money dries up and
growth is gone. We have a problem, and we are fighting over stupid stuff. I mean, I heard that
the auditor resigned, and I don’t blame him. I mean, think about this, why would you want such a
small fish on your books that is going to cause a lot of problems for your other clients that pay a
lot more than the Town of Richlands. Why would you want that reputation? I don’t blame the
resignation at all. Do better. In five years, this place will not be the same. It is coming. You can
see it in the trending reports. Talk to any banker and financial advisor who does business in this
community. They will tell you we have a serious problem coming. We have to focus on the right
activities to fix the real issues, and that is not what is happening. Thank you.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Blake. There being no further speakers, we will go on to Agenda item
A- Police Department Recognition by Mayor Cury and I've asked Ron Holt to present these
recognitions because he is way more familiar with it than T am.

Chief Holt- Thank you, Mayor Cury and Council for providing the opportunity to recognize
some members of our department. [ wanted to introduce you to Captain Crouse. He is our newest

2



face of the department. He is the captain of operations. He is going to help me provide oversight
to the entire operations of our department. He is also going to serve as the coordinator for our
code enforcement efforts. I'm certainly blessed to have him aboard. This guy comes with 20 plus
years of experience at the Sheriff's Office. We are blessed to have him with us in the Town of
Richlands.

I was also very proud over the last few weeks to be able to promote some officers who are very
deserving. The promotions honestly are not enough for what they do for our Police Department.
However, it was all I could do to pay them back. I have said thank you probably a thousand
times to these guys and to the people in our department for the service they provided over the last
month. So, Matt Whited was promoted to First Sergeant. He is taking over our patrol division.
Sergeant Short is going to be one of our Shift Supervisors. When I first started a little over a
month ago, I was met by these two guys who said listen Chief, we are here to help you in any
way we can and every step of the way, to help build this department into something that we can
be proud of. They are doing that and so much more. Shawn shared with me that this town and
this department has been so good to me in times when I really needed this department to step up
and provide for me. I am not going to go anywhere. I love this town and this department, and
am going to stand right here with you. Shawn, you don't know how much that means to me.

Matt has taken over our scheduling for our entire operations. He has taken over our fleet and I
would encourage you guys to come to the department and sec what he has cleaned up. The place
looks amazing, and I am very proud of it and that is a testament to Matt’s hard work. So, if you
would please help me thank them for the jobs they have done over the last month.

Thank you, guys, so much for what you do. I am proud of you, and proud to serve alongside of
you, and I look forward to working with you in the years to come. I really am excited about the
future of our police department. We can't do that without the support of the board members, and
the Town Manager, and the employees here. Everyone has been so wonderful. I am really
excited, and I think great things are on the horizon.

Mayor Cury-Thank you very much for the work you are doing. It is very much appreciated.
Thank you, Officers Crouse, Whited and Short. We are more indebted to you than we can
possibly say. Sometimes I think police protection is very personal to me, if I need someone at
my house, I know they are going to be there, and that is the personal side, and we all hope for
that and think that. However, the greater side of that is you also are representing this community
to everyone and public service that we do. We are grateful to you for your service. Sincerely
thank you.

Mayor Cury- Okay, Next on the agenda is Concerns by Tim Taylor and at Tim’s request he has
whatever time he needs to have an uninterrupted presentation and then afterwards he will answer
any questions that you all may have.

Tim- Thank you, Mayor and Members of Council. My purpose for coming here tonight is not to
make any more negativity, but [ just want to speak the facts and try to put some more perspective
into what is going on. Adrienne Cordle, my former Director of Finance was not able to be here
tonight. She had a conflicting appointment. She is the Assistant Director of Tazewell County
Public Services, and she had a meeting with the Board of Supervisors. So, I need to go ahead and
get started. T won't take a lot of your time. [ promise it will only take me about 15 minutes. So
again, thank you Mayor and Members of Council for providing me a moment tonight to address
these allegations of “gross mismanagement” that I heard discussed in the previous council
meetings. Both my director finance and I were accused of gross mismanagement. I find this very
upsetting. I would normally attribute ali this blame game to political rhetoric, especially since I
am retired with no presence at the board meeting. I don't have a voice. However, Mr. White
attempted to validate his opinion of mismanagement with conversation with your Auditors.
These actions, along with continued discussion from Mr. Ratliff about possible
misappropriations continue to still be very upsetting and are untrue and force me to be here this
evening. I find it hard to understand that after 34 years of faithful service, of which 30 were as
the Manager of the Town, why such statements need to be said. To begin with, I don't believe for
an instant that a professional auditor would use such language as “gross mismanagement.” If
such action did exist it would have been noted in the annual financial statements with language
such as significant finding, material weakness, or a finding, not gross mismanagement.



The annual audits never mentioned anything about this type of activity. Therefore, I do not
believe the auditors would have said such a thing. As I understand, all members were not present
during these meetings, only two, well really only one member of council verbally announced
such an action. I would ask a question, “have the Mayor and/or Manager ever received a formal
response concerning the alleged comments from the accounting firm with Robinson, Farmer,
Cox Associates or in particular Corbin Stone, the gentleman you have been talking to?” If you
have, I would like for you to make that correspondence public to me and to the audience and
recorded in the minutes regardless of what it is. If not, I would like for you to formally ask for an
opinion from the firm based on the statement made in a council meeting and published in the
newspaper as fact. I think an official response from your auditors will be in order. Either way, [
would like this statement to be recorded in the minutes that [ adamantly disagree with that
particular statement, and I further state that the former Director of Finance and myself did not
mismanage or misappropriate any funds.

I would like to take a few minutes to elaborate on details. It is important because the matter of
interest is the integrity of myself in the town and it is important that the public and new members
of council hear some supporting facts. [ am going to give you this presentation along with the
supporting documents, but on page 35 of the fiscal year 2020 financial statement of the town
explains the procedures used by the town in establishing the budget of the town each year. It is
available on the town website as well as the Commonwealth of Virginia Auditor of Public
Accounts (APA). [ have a copy of this page that I will quickly read the excerpts that I want you
to hear and leave it as an attachment to my comments. Page 35 of that paper document, you have
this information from the auditors. These are budgetary information. So, this says the following
procedures are used by the town, establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

¢ Town Manager submits to the town council a proposed operating and capital budget for
the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating and capital budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The General Fund has
a legally adopted budget.

¢ Public Hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.

e Prior to June 30", the budget is legally enacted to passage of Appropriations Resolution.

» The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the function
level. Only the town council can revise the appropriation for each category. The town
manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within general government
departments. (that is the point I wanted to make)

The rest of the language talks about accounting procedures and so forth. At the bottom of that
page, it says the fiscal year ended June 30th, 2020, expenditures did not exceed the
appropriations at the fund basis level for any funds.

I hope everybody understands the process, that is how every town does that. Okay, I need to
look back in time to clearly identify of how we got here. The town recognized in the early to
mid-2000s the need to grow its tax base to try to transition providing governmental services
without large transfers of funds from the Electrical Department. The policy of using the revenue
generated by the Electrical System to offset taxes and fee-based policies had been in place for
many, many years. This existed a long time before I became Manager. Many municipalities that
owned their own Electric system used a transfer to help with governmental needs. It is
considered a payment in lieu of taxes that an investor owned utility would be obligated to pay
such as Appalachian Power Company.

I have included some sheets in this particular document. The following two highlighted sheets
provided by the Comparative Report Summary of Enterprise Activities for the Year Ended June
30, 2022, from the Commonwealth’s APA Website. It shows the transfers for Electric
Municipals in Virginia. [ have included that in your handouts when I give them to you. I've
highlighted from the fiscal year ending June 30", 2020. I highlighted the electric municipals in
the state of Virginia, and how much transfers that they do. I'll just give an example on this page
for town of Bedford. I think that's your buddy Bart Warner. He is the manager. They transferred
$400,000. Front Royal transferred $3 million, and here is Richlands at Zero. You can see there
is more. Danville was like $15 million, and so forth and so on. So, that is good data to have. In



other words, other people are doing it. Now, I am not saying you have to do this, [ am just
saying it is okay to do that.

The town was successful in a voluntary boundary adjustment which included the areas of
Hidden Valley, Daw Road, Purcell Addition, Birmingham, etc. The adjustment provided a larger
tax base because we had to have a larger tax base, but those people demanded services. Part of
the services they wanted was increased police protection, new street pavement, water and sewer.
The agreement between the county and the town at that time was to provide that.

The town instantly had to purchase 10 police vehicles at $25,000 a piece at that time, that was
$250,000 in one shot. We hired additional personnel, police officers, and we hired some extra
street crew and began preparing for utility improvements followed by street paving. From 2010
to 2017, the town paved streets not only all the new boundaries adjustment which they were
obligated to do but all over the town with a total cost of approximately $1,700,000. The paving
program was accelerated because VDOT was eliminating the Revenue Sharing program with
new methods for funding with the SMART Scale. By 2017 the town had paved most of the
streets that qualify for use of VDOT highway maintenance funds and must be maintained with
local governmental funds. There is only 20% of roads in this town that doesn’t qualify for that
money. That is why if you look at the fiscal year budgets over many years, we always budgeted
approximately 120% of the annual Highway Maintenance funds in that department. On the 20 %
that it doesn’t cover, you still have to strap snow and add gravel, storm drainage and streetlights
and so on. The VDOT funding had never reached $1,000,000, it came close but never reached
that much. In previous years, throughout this progress the revenue was lower. The way that
works is you get incremental increases over the year, and it ends on a formula that the state has
and the availability of their funds. Some years it's more or less just depends on the legislature.
We never budgeted $700,00 and somehow moved $250,000 in an effort to fool or confuse
council. I promise you that. The finance office has a detailed listing of all activity as it is audited
with additional reporting that is required to the Cooper Center for Public Service.

Since qualified roadways didn't need paving for three or four years, because we had paved it up.
1t was decided to wait and pave at a time when we could apply for 2 Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) which the department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD).
These plans were a result of interests at that time from Mayor Crawford and some of the Council
members. If delayed, paving and concrete work such as curb and gutter, and brick inlays, all the
things that goes with that, including storm drains and so forth, that $1,000,000 that we carry
over and collect year after year while we were waiting could be used to leverage our million-
dollar grant that we talked about. So, in other words, you could get $2 million worth of work
with $1,000,000 grant. That was the plan and that is the reason that the Director of Economic
Development was hired (Connie Allen). She was there not only to do Festivals and things, but
she was also there to prepare the grants. Street work in the target area from the West End
Downtown Revitalization could be deferred to a later date. Unfortunately, COVID-19 was a
reality and delayed some of these plans. Everybody had to change their plans after that, and
everybody was faced with that in the State of Virginia for sure. Most of this is identified in the
comprehensive plan. It is on the website. It was produced by the Planning Commission and
adopted by council. My staff and I also produced a Needs Assessment and Planning Resource
Guide that is in the Office of Engineering at the Town Hall. I hope this clarifies some of
comments made last council meeting about the town never planning, because there's lots of
people involved in that.

In an effort to reduce the subsidies of revenue to the governmental fund from the Electrical
Department, this is very important, by vote of the council, a plan was put in place to not transfer
revenue from the Electrical Department to the Governmental Fund. I don't recall the exact date
to that. Tt was somewhere around 2009 or 2010. But there was a problem. The plan cannot work
without the governmental fund initially receiving reserves to buffer the governmental transition
to self-supporting. It is supported by fees and taxes. The governmental services acquired the
initial revenue for this use, until council could find a balance of tax and fee adjustments for even
departmental service cuts. The revenue that was initially put in was never governmental money.
1t was never revenue generated from taxes or related fees as the town before this time had never
had the ability to generate reserves with the Electric Department. The initial governmental
reserves were only intended to get things started in a fashion providing a smooth transition so



the people could budget and plan with as few negative impacts as possible, because council
recognized there had to be some taxes put in place.

Now here's where the problem comes in. I'm not being derogatory to our councils either today or
in the past. It's hard to do what you are doing. It's hard. It's a difficult job. I wouldn't have it, but
don't take this the wrong way, because it is often human nature to do what you can do for
people. I understand that but unfortunately the council had a hard time implementing the plan
because the reserves provided an easy means to balance the budget every year. So instead of
trying to make the tough decisions, it was just easier to start using the reserves. From 2010-
2019, the town did adjust some existing taxes and imposed some new ones. However, this was
not enough. Unfortunately, additional issues began to affect the plan that wasn’t anticipated.
This is the real killer that got the budget.

In previous years the town had decided that they would provide rescue or EMS services for
Richlands, Cedar Bluff and areas in Tazewell County. Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is
the sole responsibility of counties and cities per Virginia State Code not towns. However, the
town council decided to enter into agreement with Tazewell County, thus giving the town
permission to provide this governmental service for the county. Richlands did this for several
years, only losing minimal dollars. So, initiaily it was a pretty good idea. It worked well.
Unfortunately, in or around 2013, the losses for that department were significant, and they were
raising pretty bad, and they would continue to raise, and they did continue to raise. It had to do
with demographics, most of the aging population, the people that demand the services didn’t
have the money to pay. We informed the council and with the authorization, [ wrote the County
Administrator with a request to review the existing contract because the $10,000 a year that the
county gave the town just wasn't enough. The town exercised many attempts to convince the
county to negotiate an increase in contributions to the town, but the county would not increase
the payment. So, the council said we are going to attempt to try to do something better. So, the
council attempted to offset the revenue Josses with increased bad debt collections. I think Mr.
Wood was here on that one and so was Mr. Ratliff. They tried to increase the debt collection
because people weren’t paying, and it was getting bad. As well as looking at starting an
ambulance transport service ending with no economic success. I think the debt collection service
worked a little, but the transport service just didn't work. Over a period of just five years, staff
had determined the loss to be $1.2 million. The town council was appropriated revenue from the
governmental reserves to overcome this loss. That was the only choice they had at that time
without raising something. Think about this, Richlands was doing the business of the county,
which we didn’t have to do, with Richlands® Taxpayer Dollars for approximately 40% for the
entire county’s population. Finally, in 2020, council was able to get assistance to correct this
budget drain with Supervisor Hackworth and Lester’s help. Tazewell County agreed to renew
the contract and pay Richlands for performing this service entirely. After renewing the confract
in June 2020, the general fund would have an additional $200,000 plus going forward with true
ups annually if Richlands suffered losses. We also would have had an approximately $300,000
gain if council had not reversed a cigarette tax implemented in 2014 after only two months of
collections delaying it for 4 years before we got it reinstated. These two issues alone cost the
taxpayers and that general fund budget $1.5 million.

Now, I'm not going to stand here and tell you that wasn't hard on council. It was, everybody
understood that and that's a tough job when you say, well, I'm just not going to do it anymore.
I'm not trying to blame council, that is a tough decision because if you are going to do that and
nobody does it as well as you do, there is going to be lives lost. So, I guess they just kept
thinking maybe we will get better, but it never got better. And today I think, I don't know what
the revenue is that you get today. I didn't make it to the true ups. So, I don’t have any idea how
it is performing. But that is when we had trouble because the money that you are talking about,
the VDOT money, we started using, not the carry over money but the money that we started
using out of that carry over started depleting in 2019. We recognized that and we brought that to
councils’ attentions. So, that budgetary process started in the Spring of 2020. It was a hard
discussion. So, I am including in this document copies of two memos with recommendation for
proposed fiscal year 2020-2021 budget. As well as part of the June 16", 2020, minutes to
illustrate the financial position of the town in regard to the governmental fund. I think you may
find the conversation that formed it. However, I would recommend that you go back and read all
the meetings. So go back and read all that and maybe you will understand that it was a tough
time trying to figure out what to do. The budget recommendations that [ made, would give us
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$250,000 with tax increases and fee increases. Then another $200,000 that we were going to
start getting from the county would have given a $450,000 boost for next year. I felt like and
staff felt like that would have buffed up the general fund that we wouldn't have to use the cash
in the VDOT money. It would have squared it up so you wouldn’t have been having that
conversation. If we have that $1.5 million in there, we wouldn’t be sitting here today.

Alright, it is in the handouts, the suggested adjustments and service cuts in my memos were
aggressive but necessary since the town government reserve funds were gone and existing
annual revenue was not adequate. We spent all the savings. The use of the funds was discussed
many times going back to 2013. Supporting documents on file in the office showing many,
many, budget work session presentations showing the problems with not trying to introduce
some increases to the general fund revenue. Continual warning from staff and the auditors that
the town is going to run out of money if measures were not taken, but it was ignored by council.
Council totally disregarded the staff’s recommendations. To me the problem is clear, the council
kept appropriating expenditures that exceeded revenue (money) including reserves.

Before closing, there is one last thing, I want to address that was said in council meeting. I want
to make it very clear, I never admitted in a meeting that I committed a $1.5 million mistake. I
had to pay the bills and I did so. The council appropriating spending each year, they are the only
ones that can do that, and every check that was issued was only after council review and council
approval at every monthly business meeting.

So as of June 2020, per the Financial Statement, there was $4,264,184 in unrestricted funds
available to spend by council through appropriation ordinance. Now, we all know that's
electrical and water money. I retired from the town with the only governmental debt being the
new fire truck and that was part of the discussion in that June meeting and IT improvements. I
don't know the financial business in the town today, almost two years later. So, I will not be
presenting any comments except the deferred VDOT highway fund (unearned revenue). As of
June 30th, 2020, it was $1,079,631, and according to what I heard at the last Council meeting is
already up to 1.5 million. So, that tells me you have got to start paving and start obligating...1
mean, again. I said I wouldn’t give recommendations... ] am going to say this, the town can, |
guess, use the ARPA money as seed money for the governmental fund as was done in 2009, to
try to find some balance of taxes and utility transfers or they can continue to use that funding as
an easy way to balance the budget each and every year, and be at the same position 3 or 4 years
later as they were in June 2020.

So, I've made a copy of all that, and I would like for every member of council to have a copy of
it, the clerk to have a copy, the Mayor and Town Manager and I would like for it to be a part of
the official minutes just for history. You don’t have to say it is accurate, it is just what [ am
saying, and you can fact check me. Warren Hinkle with The Voice, if they are here tonight and
Jim Talbert can have one too. [ also request because I'm confident that you give a copy to
Davenport, your financial advisor and if you hire a forensic auditor, I would like for you to
provide one to them as well.

In my closing statement, I would like to say that Ms. Adrienne Cordle and I are fully prepared
to defend our position on all of the allegations that have been made from members of council
both past and future regardiess of what happens. Thank you for your time and attention. That's
all I have.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Tim. [ believe that some of our members have questions for you.

Seth- Tim wasn’t here at the meeting or the meeting before that so I want to explain how we got
here. In the meeting before that, we had asked the staff to provide a roads list to look at paving
projects. There hasn’t been any paving done in our town in the last 5-7 years. So, the street
department, along with the Town Manager and staff prepared a paving list. We know that we get
this amount of money every year from VDOT, and when I was in the county, we always
appropriated our paving, and we did a lot of matching grants. A lot like you were talking about.
So, I was thinking this is very simple. So, I'm siting here and saying we can do this, this, this.
And everybody is just looking at me, and I said I don't understand. What am I missing, what do 1
not know? One by one, everyone began to speak and said we do not have that money. The
million dollars, or $1.5 million now or $1,047,000 when you left continued to grow by about
250,000 a year, to $1.5 over last two years. Which is on the same pace as it was when you were



here. So, they said we don't have that money because we use that money to balance the budget
which was the same thing that happened when Tim was here. So, I said well that that sounds a
little alarming to me, and I said that sounds like a misappropriation. That's where that word
came from. So, after the meeting I said, well I think we need to look into this. Because this all
just came up here in the middle of the meeting, in open session, we were discussing this. So,
after the meeting, John called me and said before you go to the Commonwealth Attorney, would
you please talk with Corbin, our auditors? I said absolutely. So, Jeff and I scheduled an
appointment with Corbin. I asked a lot of questions and he explained and what he explained to
us, when we use the number a million it is approximately a million. It is really $975,000
whatever. Okay, so approximately $1,000,000 every year comes in and the Street Department
takes about $750,000. If you don't do any extra paving projects or large projects, there's an
excess of approximately $250,000 based on what we are charging back against the grant. So,
Corbin says basically you are given all this money quarterly, and what council has done over the
past six years is take that money and balance the budget. John was in that meeting and said, if
we stop doing this, we have to come up with somewhere to get the other $250,000. Is that
correct, John? I don’t want to put words in your mouth. You have to come up with a different
plan. So, 1 said let me make sure I understand. For the past six years in this town, we get this
$1,000,000 from VDOT and whatever we don't charge back against it instead of pooling that
money because we did that many times in the county. That money was separated, and we never
touched that money. We would save that money up for a larger paving project or whatever.
Instead of doing that, that money was used to balance the budget for the last six years. That is
four years that Tim was here and the last two years because that had been the common practice.
Corbin confirmed that that was correct. He said the reason it is not a misappropriation is because
we have an accounting of every penny of this. [ said good, and I appreciated that. So, I said it's
not a misappropriation, but it's a gross mismanagement of public funds and he agreed with me.
If we continue to kick this ball down the road and add $250,000 to this every year, in 10 years,
that's $2.5 million. Corbin said but VDOT has never asked for this money back. Okay maybe
they won't. But if you all remember, 7-10 years ago, VDOT shut down every convenience area
in the state of Virginia because they had a budget shortfall. So, to make up for budget funds,
they had to find areas to do that. What is to say that next year we have a budget shortfall, and
they call the towns and say we want that money back. I said Corbin, if they called today, how do
we pay this money back? He said, well, technically we have the money, but you would have to
take the money from the power, and water, and all this money and pay them back. However,
now we have ARPA funds, which is a different pool of money. But the four years that you were
here, you didn't know that ARPA funds were coming, and the budget continued to be balanced
with grant money from the VDOT fund. So, you began a pattern, and [ am not saying just you,
maybe the council was complicit or whatever, but from what I understood, this is just the way
that it was done. So, this can continue to be kicked down the road. If we don't fix this now, we
are never going to be able to fix it. So, Jeff and 1, in that meeting devised a plan whereby we can
pave all the roads in Richlands. The approximate list from the street department is about $1.5.
We will have to put that out for RFP which we plan on doing that in January. But we can charge
that back against the grant and get that hopefully balanced to zero. The second piece of that is
we can never do this again, cannot rely on those funds to balance the budget. That's what I
wanted to make clear that this is not a good system and Corbin again agreed with me in that
meeting. Jeff was there. Jeff, have I misstated anything that happened in that meeting?

Jeff- No.
Seth- Now, Tim, I appreciate you coming, and I appreciate what you said, and I understand that.

Tim- In all fairness, and you probably didn't think about that, but if you would have called me, [
could have explained this to you. It's not quite like you say, not because it doesn’t seem that
way, because what you said does make sense to people that don't understand what the plan was.
Maybe John, don't get it either, [ don't know. But here is what was happening, we did not use
that money to balance the budget for several years until it got flagged that we had to dip into it.
If you look at the financial statements, now that is not to say we didn't carry over the funds, but
we had cash up until about the second or third quarter. I don't have the books, so I am just going
off memory. So, that could be off a little bit. But based on my memory, it was somewhere
around the second or third quarter that Adrienne said we are out of reserves and in order to pay
the bills, even with taxes, it looks like you are going to have to get into those funds. Because
there is no other way to pay the bills. That's why we got so aggressive in 2020, because we seen
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a relief. So, from a cash flow perspective it was never planned like that. The cash flow, if you go
back and look at the charts, and I might be way off base because I don't have Adrienne with me,
maybe we can further discuss that with John or Heather, and [ don't mind to give you time for
that. But here is what happened. That's why we were so aggressive. You are in that money that
is giving me trouble because we can't spend that money. You are right, we shouldn't be doing
that. Once we met that $1,000,000 cap of carryover to match the grant, then that money is a
deferred revenue. My plan to get that money was to get the EMS problem off my back. That is
$200,000 more dollars and if you would have implemented the other tax increases that have
been almost $450,000. By the time we would have gotten that bid out with maybe another tax
increase or maybe you would have had to transfer a little money out of the electric. I don't know,
but you would have been back up, but we could have solved that problem of getting that to pay
the bills. The problem is you didn't have the $1,000,000 to pay the payment. Now that plan
didn't get followed, but you did get the taxes in. After I was gone, you got taxes, right? You got
more money. | don't how much that is, I have no clue. However, if the formula works out that
those additional taxes with the EMS off of that and plus the rate increases, we had for fees and
garbage truck, if that adds up, it should balance back out in two or three years. You should be
able to do that without the ARPA money. That was our plan. You have to go in and look in the
actual financial statement to know that. If you take a broad look and in all fairness to you, you
are coming in cold. You are hearing, all of you kind of are... except for Mr. Ratliff, Mr. Cury,
and Mr. Woods, but we flagged it. We discussed that in budget work sessions, Seth. Go look,
they are there. We told council and that is how those comments about the VDOT fund... we
don't want to get in all of those. I cannot pay the bills without doing it. Unless you let me
transfer money out of the electric. T did not want to do that. I wanted to try to stay with the flow
of that, because it was just too easy to do. You shouldn't do that. I was getting ready to leave
anyway and I didn't want to leave a mess and I didn't think I did. But you don't know that plan,
Ms. Mollo does not know that plan and all the way around the board.

Seth- And I understand what you're saying, but Corbin should have known that plan.

Tim- Corbin did not know the plan. We just talked some about the books. I mean some of this
plan came back through when Crawford was here and getting those grants to be obligated to the
million-dollar match so we could get the downtown revitalization. It was a bad time to try to
start downtown revitalization but council’s focus at that time was we must do it even if we have
to raise taxes. We have to do that because our town is dying, and we just cannot not do it. I
know your heart strings get pulled, it does mine too, but think about the job of the poor ole
Town Manager. He has to go cut people’s power off. Not that [ want to do that, that is a tough
job. Just like you all have a tough job as well. When you get down in the weeds and you look at
all that happened and all the planning that took place, you are going to see unless you spent
more money than I thought. Your cost may have gone up, or maybe you made more
appropriations to spend the money that I had planned to be spent. I know your costs have gone
up. I understand that inflation, and COVID, all that played a role in this, and our funds were
depleted. However, there is plenty of towns around the state that when their money coming in
from taxes didn’t hit and people couldn’t pay their bills and their taxes. They had to sit around
the table and make tough decisions and figure out how to pay the bills. I assure you that me and
Ms. Cordle would have never, never on purpose done that and we would never have done
something that council wasn’t aware of. That's why there was such an argument. We went to the
11th hour on June 30" and passed a budget that I really didn't approve of because they passed
the expenditure budget that didn't have anything lowered and the revenue streams were there,
but never passed the taxes. Then they looked at me said pay the bills. Now what am 1 going to
do? I mean, I don't have a choice, and Corbin probably meant a mismanagement of the whole
mess to be quite frank with you. We have got a financial, I don't know if you're using it, but we
have financial policies that council adopted in 2019 that tells you the amount of reserves we
should have, how much balance the tax base should be, how much data we should carry. The
good thing about it is the town didn't have hardly any debt. That's a good thing, but it doesn't
help with the cash flow. You all have to figure that out as elected officials. I mean, John is faced
with trying to make it happen for you financially, but you got to believe in him. And I'm not
saying the council didn't believe in me. I think everybody understood. It was just a tough
decision. You all have to do what you think is right. But I assure you, that was not just to lay
back and just take money out of that and go on with business as usual. Now, Corbin, I can't
believe he meant to say it that way either, because I asked him personally about this. I said do
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you want council to restrict those funds so that I cannot spend them? I said that. He can tell you
that. Can we restrict those funds so we can't spend them? Council could do that by ordinance.
And he says no you can't do that because you can't tie their hands. What if some big
emergencies happen. You have to have that money to pay for that right then? Then you can't tie
their hands legally. He says you can't do that, I said but that would force them to do so. That
sounds bad, but I was trying everywhere in the world to get it done right. So, you have to look at
my point of view. I'm the treasurer, and the commissioner of revenue when I was here and
trying to make the bills and pay them. We never missed a bond payment. We never missed a bill
that any vendor my entire 34 years. You can't have too many towns that can say that.

VDOT would never ask for that money back. Why would you give it back anyway? If you did
have it? You just pave. I mean, we knew that would be a problem going down the road, but we
could still kick it down the road. [ didn't think it would ever get to $1.5. I think you had enough
money to do that. I'm not picking on y'all. John didn’t know the plan either. I only had a day and
Y with him. That's all I had. That wasn’t my doing, but whatever. Heather, you lost your boss,
the director of finance. So, I don't blame you for thinking it looks like that. I am not pointing any
fingers at anybody, but we don't need to fight about it. I promise you this, I don't think you want
to do this before the first of the year but Seth, you can still be involved in this, but Ms. Cordle
and 1, if you would want us to, that's not stepping on your toes, it is just purely assistance. We
would meet with whoever the council members are, we will meet with you all and explain our
side of what we think you should do as an advisor. We would do that in ever how many
meetings you would need. Not to do John's job. I'm not going to do that. I know it's
intimidating. But what is the matter with a little help? I am a citizen. [ pay taxes in this town.
Now, I know it doesn’t lessen the pain any, but you have to know we are not crooks. I mean
really. My God, I have been here for 34 years. I mean, why would I, when Kevin Blankenship
left, he was the director of utilities right in the middle, and I don't blame him either, but he left
right in the middle of trying to renovate and rehabilitate the water and sewer plant. Now Kevin
makes $75,000 a year then when you add in all his benefits, it would have been about $125,000
a year. [ did his job and my job for two years. I saved the town $125,000 times 2. Now, if 'm a
bad person, why would I have done that? I could have just said I don't have the time. I love this
town too, Seth. Ms. Mollo, you research everything. One thing good about this council, and I'll
say that about Mr. Ratliff too, he's always trying to think of a way. We have had our ups and
downs over the years. But if you are all in agreement, or you are all apathetic and don't try to
check one another, you can't get stronger. I'm not trying to school you either, but I'm an old man
and I have been here a long time. It works better if you check each other. But you have to trust
each other too. I don't know if you have any more questions. I've talked way too much.

Seth- [ just want to finish clarifying. So, the second meeting, when we came back from the
meeting, I wanted to make sure, and I asked the mayor. I said Mr. Mayor, it's important to me
because we had talked about misappropriation, which is a very harsh term. If that is what we had
found, then you would have had a visit with the Commonwealth Attorney. So, I wanted to
clarify that, but that's the meeting that you got angry about when we tatked about
mismanagement. But Tim it is a gross mismanagement. Now that may not be just solely on you
and maybe it was the council too, but you can't spend funds from a VDOT grant on things that
you shouldn't spend it on with no way to pay it back. I understand you had a plan, but that plan
goes over many years and nobody in here knew about it. John didn't even know about it
apparently. I understand what you are saying, but that's kind of easy to say that today that you
had a plan, but nobody knew about that plan.

Tim- Well, the other council members that were with me knew it. Rick Wood knew it. He was
there. You didn't talk to him about it, I guess, but either way, I don't want to point fingers. Like I
said, you all are going to do whatever you all need to do.

Seth- I wanted to clarify that you didn’t do anything criminally wrong. That was our whole point
on why we met with Corbin. But regardless of whether it's your fault, Adrienne's fault, some of
the council's fault, whatever, this was a mismanagement of those funds. Those funds should
have never been spent. You admitted so just a minute ago yourself, they should have never been
spent to balance the budget.

Tim- They were spent with authorization from council. [ made myself clear, they appropriated
the funds in that June 30th meeting knowing those funds were what [ was going to use. I want
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everyone to be clear on that. So, I don't want anyone to be confused about that. That money was
spent because they voted on a budget that had those expenditures in it and there was no place
else to get the money and they knew it. So, you can say what you want to in semantics, but and
you don't know that, but [ know that. You can go back and look at the minutes, at the work
sessions. So, you just can't assume that. You have to go do your research. That is why I would
appreciate it if you would have called me. Maybe we can look together.

Doug- Can I speak to that?

Tim- I really don’t want to sit here and do more of this. I know that you all are going to do
whatever you all are going to do, and I'm not trying to sit here and defend myself. I've spoken
enough and we can get into a she said, he said. I know, Mr. Ratliff, you will get excited about it
and I don't want this to turn into a circus here tonight.

Doug- I am not going to get excited.
Tim- Okay, I'm sorry, you know, we have had our issues. So, go ahead.

Doug- The council, myself, and I know of several others, had no idea that money was spent.
One of the conversations, you came into a meeting and the council knew nothing about it, and
you said I've spent $1,000,000. I shouldn't have, and I don’t know how to put it back.

Tim- No, Sir. No, Sir. No, Sir.

Doug- Rick, did you remember that?

Rick- It was in closed session.

Tim- And you're saying, Rick, that I said that?

Rick- No, I am not saying you said that. I'm saying that you and Adrienne both came in and told
us that you all had to use some of that money to pay the bills.

Tim- Well sure and we had the ability to pay that back. When you are writing checks and you
get $500,000 in one month, you have to move money around to pay those bills. At the end of the
day, you put it back. The problem is...

Doug- Did you know any...

Tim- See there we go. At the end of the day, it is going to be a disagreement with me and Mr.
Ratliff. If you did not hear it, it doesn’t mean that it wasn't spoken.

Doug- Did you know that money was not spent on VDOT, Mr. Wood.
Rick- I did know that we had spent $1,000,000.

Doug- Did you know that he had spent VDOT money?

Tim- We did not spend $1,000,000. I am telling you.

Rick- 1 did know that we had approved it in council.

Tim- We did not spend $1,000,000.

Rick- I don’t remember the exact number.

Tim- Well Adrienne could tell you if she was here.

Doug- I had no idea any VDOT money was spent. You came in and said I have spent this
money and I don’t know how to put it back and that was the first of it that I had heard. Do you
remember a conversation that we had in 2009.

Tim- In 200972 Can you give me a little hint.

Doug- We hadn’t been taking any money out of the electric fund. You came to me and said
Doug, we need money. Can [ start taxing the electric fund to the tune of over $200,000. I said
no, I wouldn't vote for that. Why don't you tell the Council you need to cut the budget instead of
taxing the electrical fund.
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Tim- I don’t have a clue about what you are talking about.

Doug- Well you came and asked me, and in 2009, we were not taking anything out of the
electrical fund.

Tim- That is right. We still haven't, but you are not convinced of that. But after 2010, we didn't
do it.

Doug- You came to the other council members, and they gave you permission to start taxing the
electrical fund to the tune of $200,000. Okay, that wasn't enough. After that in 2009, 2010, and
2011, you came back and wanted to take direct funds out of the electric fund and move them to
the budget. I said Tim, why don't you tell the council members to cut the budget? If you notice
the last 8-9 years I have voted no on every budget. However, you wouldn't do that. You came
and got the council to vote that you could take funds out of the electric fund. I told you when
you did that you would regret that, because it is going to put a lot of pressure on those electric
rates and that is going to cause them to raise. You made the statement a few minutes ago that it
is to easy, that once you start taking funds out of one department and moving it to the other...

Tim- This is why I didn't want to do this. But let me tell you one thing. That is why I gave you
that handout. Go to the audits at the state site and look at the contributions and see what it is. It
will tell you. It is not what he says. This is why I didn’t want to do this. But [ will agree to meet
with you in a round table, me and Ms. Cordle both will. If you want to take us up on it, but you
may want to wait until the new council because you have to do it over again. I don't care, but I'm
not going to do anymore.

Doug- I just want to ask one more question.

Tim- I don’t want to do any more.

Doug- Just one more.

Tim- Are you going to accuse me of something or ask me something?
Doug- I'm not saying... I'm saying it was mismanagement.

Tim- Well, that's your opinion, and I don’t want to do this anymore.
Doug- [ just want to ask you one more thing.

Mayor Cury- Gentlemen, Doug, you will have your say in a minute. Tim, you asked us for two
things: you would like an official response from Robinson, Farmer, & Cox.

Tim- [ would and I think you all need that and if it is against me than it will be whatever it is and
Mr. Stone can say what he wants to, and I'll probably disagree with him also. But that is an
opinion. That is not a crime. It is an opinion.

Mayor Cury- Okay, [ am just trying to take notes here. The other thing is you are offering to sit
around the table in a work session with the new council with Adrienne and you talk about where
you have been.

Tim- Yes, where I have been not where you all are going. That is your job and maybe learn not
to do it that way again if that is the case, or why we did it so you can understand not to do it
again. Whatever it is that comes out of this. I will accept your opinions; I am not trying to
change that. I just wanted to make that clear.

Mayor Cury- I appreciate that and I am sure council does too. That would be in the hands of the
new council, I am sure. If that is the desire of the council. Doug, you had one last question? Is it
a question or a statement.

Doug- No, it is something [ did. When I found out that $1,000,000 had already been spent. I had
no idea that it had already been spent. I called the auditor and I said, did you know about this?
He said yes, and 1 said is that proper to do that, to spend earmarked money on other projects in
other departments? He said no, that should not have happened, and it was wrong, but that a lot of
other towns do that. Okay just because a lot of other towns do this doesn't make it right. He said
it was wrong.
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Tim- I would just like to make one final statement on that council knew about it and they
approved it, and they passed the ordinance on it, and it was all legal. They shouldn’t have
probably done it and I tried to get them to restrict it, but the auditor wouldn’t let me. You can ask
Adrienne about it. That is all I want to say, I don’t want to interact anymore because it is not
going to get pretty, and I don’t want to taint this meeting. I enjoyed the conversation, and I am
not trying to change the opinion of anybody. I did the best that I could do with the money I had. I
wish you the best. I am still going to live here, and I am still going to pay taxes here. | wish you
the best. [ hope it works out well for you all.

Laura- Mr. Taylor if I could just ask two clarifying questions.
Tim- Okay.

Laura- If you and Adrienne did come back and talk to the new council, would you do that at a
rate or as a courtesy?

Tim- Oh no. I do not want to be paid and Ms. Cordle would not want to be paid. It is just being a
citizen and help to you all if we can.

Laura- Just for clarification because it is hard for citizens and me sitting up here because I wasn’t
in those closed sessions with you guys, but primarily, is the only thing that you are disagreeing
with is what we are calling a gross mismanagement? Are we on the same page that the money
was spent... and T am not blaming you. I have always said, no matter what you did this council
has always approved it. It comes back to the council.

Tim- That is a fair question. I can't answer what those figures are without Ms. Cordle being able
to get with Heather and going over that. I would like to know the magic date that we had to dip
into that, because it sounds like we did it on purpose all these years and [ don't think that's the
case. I think it was later on. Now we did on purpose carry over that $1,000,000. But that wasn't
spent, that was deferred revenue that we were hoping to make up with these adjustments that we
were hoping to spend later, because we didn’t need it until later. So that's a good question. I don't
know, but yes, it was with council’s permission. [ am not really too bent out of shape, but 1
wanted my voice, because everyone has an opinion. I guess it's just a sticker shock when you see
the paper. | haven't really been keeping up with what you all are doing. I don't know your
financial position today. When I retired, I pretty much didn't take anything, and I just went home.

Laura- Just so you know in that council meeting, councilmen Seth White was very adamant that
he didn't believe that this was intentional or malicious or anything illegal. It was just...

Tim- I understand that. I do. I respect Mr. White and I understand that you are just trying to do
the right thing. I hope that whatever it is, if it is gross mismanagement, then there is plenty
enough blame to go around.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Tim, and thank you members of council. Lance, thank you. Okay, next
on the agenda is Consideration of Forensic Audit RFP. John?

John- So I can give you all a copy of the RFP that we plan on putting out because forensic audits
are so complicated and so expensive, I just wanted to make sure that this document states exactly
what you all want us to put out there for procurement. I just want to make sure before we put this
out there and bids start coming in and something not line up with exactly what you want. So, 1
just wanted to give you all a copy of this and if you all are fine with it then we will put it out,
probably tomorrow.

Mayor Cury- Has everyone had an opportunity to read this proposal?
John- Legal has reviewed this.

Laura- May 1 have just a moment. This was part of mine that was missing.
Mayor Cury- Absolutely.

John- There is a second contract in your packet as well that I think was missing, so if we have
extra time, if you all could look at that one as well.

Seth- Mr. Mayor, this appears to match the motion that we made in our last meeting.
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Doug- Can I make a suggestion? Would there be any way that we could let all our applicants
come to our attorney? Then let maybe two council members converse with our attorney. Maybe
Ms. Mollo and Seth and choose one and bring it to the council with their suggestions on who
they think the auditors should be.

Mayor Cury- What is your reasoning for that Doug?

Doug- If we are going to do an audit, I think the attorney should be in charge of it along with two
council members, not go to the Town Manager. Because he is in charge of the daily operations. I
just think the smart thing to do would be to mail all applicants to you (town attorney) and you
work with council on who you choose to do the audit.

Mayor Cury- Does anybody else want to weigh in on Doug’s suggestion?

Seth- [ understand what you are saying Doug, but I don't think that is really his forte in opening
bid packets.

Doug- Once he gets them, he would prefer to two council members such as you two. [ just don't
think if somebody is being audited that they should get to choose their auditor.

Seth- But it is public. It's a public database. It's not like we are auditing John or the Director of
Finance.

Michael- Just to clarify it is to audit the council as well. So, the whole theory of the town
manager should choose it then the council shouldn’t either.

Seth- Right. The audit includes the whole scope of our work, and past council and the votes that
they have taken. Did they appropriate funds correctly, did they do the bidding process correctly?
All those things.

Doug- I just want to choose the best firm.
Jeff- Well, we need to get the bids first.

Seth- All that staff is doing is choosing the certified low bidder. Then we can have a meeting
with these two firms, the two top three firms. We can have a meeting with these two firms then
we take a vote with the whole council and decide which one we want to go with.

Doug- I just think it would be a much cleaner...

John- I would anticipate if we got them here and designated a time for them to be here and
anybody is welcome to be here for that opening. Then we would bring those to council and
discuss those in closed session anyways. Because likely it will not be a lump sum because they
really don't know what they are getting into until they get here, and they start working. So, I
think it would be some kind of an hourly rate based on the auditor. That isn't ideal but with
something like this that's really hard to know what to expect them to come back with.

Mayor Cury- Thank you all for your suggestions. John, I expect you want a motion to move
forward with this?

John- Correct.

Mayor Cury- Is there a motion to authorize the Town Manager to move forward with the request
of proposals for the forensic audit.

Laura- I make a motion to authorize the Town Manager to move forward with the request of
proposals for the forensic audit. Seth seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any discussion?

Laura- I just want to clarify for citizens that what we are doing here is getting bids to perform a
forensic audit. Anyone who has given us a number of what this is going to cost is just an
estimate. None of us really know what this is going to cost at this point. It could be $10,000 ov it
could be $100,000. No one knows at this point. This is what this is for is to get the bids to do so.

Mayor Cury- Okay, if there is no further discussion. I will ask for a roll call vote. All those in
favor of the motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- No, Rick-
Yes, Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -5/1.
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Mayor Cury- Thank you. The next item is Annual Audit Update and RFP.

John- As you all know Corbin Stone and their firm has withdrawn their offer to do our audit for
this year. I have found the proposal we put out. We have to put that out for rebidding every three
or four years. I plan on putting that back out, I just wanted to make sure everyone was fine with
that. So, if you see something in the paper or on EVA, we are just putting it back out there for
bid. We have received a couple of leads on a couple different firms. We just want to make sure
that they are aware of it. It still might put us behind with this as well as getting our year end
reporting done. It is going to put us a little bit later than we normally do, but as long as we get
someone in and get these things started, and we will get an updated timeline of when we
anticipate that all being completed.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, John. Any questions about the Annual Audit Update and RFP for a new
auditing firm?

Seth- Do you need a motion to approve that?
John- No. I just wanted to give you all an update.

Mayor Cury- John, I have a request. Will you please provide the council with copies of the email
that Corbin Stone sent you?

John- Yes, I can.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, I would appreciate that. Next, we have Consideration of Downtown
Revitalization Contract.

John- So, this was a second contract that was front and back and you may all be missing the
second page. So, if you want to take a second look at it. Essentially, this was the contract that I
mentioned a month or two ago that we have gotten a copy in. The attorneys had some issues with
how nuch insurance coverage and the way they were doing their pricing. Based on what they
have submitted now, I think that we are more comfortable with the proposal. It is more of lump
sum cost versus an hourly wage. So, their proposal is for the $50,000 which is the grant plus if
there's any additional cost because we asked for additional services beyond what was in this
original agreement. So, if you all want to review that before we sign into this contract to move
forward with our downtown revitalization. It is kind of the initial phase with the architect to
narrow down the area and what buildings of what we could see in that area and then after that is
all put in place that we would look at the additional million dollar grant to do streetscapes and
facade grants and things of that nature.

Doug- I have a question. The grant was for $1,000,000?

John- No, this one was only for $50,000 for the architecture planning and review to try to narrow
down what area is going to have to most benefit. Then we would go after the $1,000,000 grant.

Doug- Is it obligating any of the town’s budget to pay for this?

John- We received this $50,000 grant. As long as we keep this under the $50,000 then there is
nothing that we have to pay out unless we ask for additional services. But there shouldn’t be any
cost to the town. That was my understanding.

Michael- That was a big hold up that we had as well. It was that they didn’t have that capped
and that was something that we felt they needed to do. You can see on the second page that it has
a guaranteed maximum fee of $50,000. If there is anything additionally that is added on to it that
would then be an obligation to the town.

Seth- It looks like we would have to ask them to do additional services anyways. So, if that is the
case, we can just make sure they clarify that.

John- It would be an addendum to the contract.

Mayor Cury- John, would you like a motion to move forward on this?

John- Yes, one way or the other.

Seth- I make a motion to move forward with this contract with Dialog & Design and Associates.

Rick seconded the motion.
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Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- I consider this an improvement for the Town of Richlands, so thank you. Next, we
have an update on the Rec Commission. Jeff? ‘

Jeff- Last meeting Mr. Cordle came from the Rec Commission and discussed updates for safety
issues and safety hazards. I just wanted to have discussion about it. [ would personally like to
move forward with it. If we need that in the form of a motion then I would like to make that
motion tonight.

I make a motion that we allocate $250,000 of the relief recovery funds for the improvements and
upgrades per the Rec Commission’s recommendation on how the money is spent.

Mayor Cury- So, you are making that a motion?

Jeff- Yeah, that's what we talked about. Even if we didn't do all the projects, that would be
enough for them to prioritize them at the time based on what the Rec Commission felt like was
most important.

Mayor Cury- s this everything they needed?

Jeff- Yes, unless they get into something that they haven’t anticipated.

Mayor Cury- Okay, we have a motion is there a second?

Rick- I have a question, I thought Tony was getting us prices on everything first?

Jeff- Well, they haven’t met again. I talked to them today and they won’t meet until after our
next meeting. I talked to Jessica today and they had a guesstimate on some of those things, but
they had also put the increases in there. So, they were just going to prioritize that was most
important first.

Seth- I want to caution you guys again. Number one, you can't use any of those bids that they
have, they are not valid because they were not put through an RFP. If we are going to do this,
then it has to been done properly. You can’t just have anyone coming out here and bidding.

Jeff- That is why I am giving it to the Rec Commission to prioritize what was needed first. Then
we will go through the proper channels on putting it out for bids. They are not going to be
spending the money. They are going to tell us what projects need to be prioritized first and then
we can put that out for bids.

Seth- I just think that is cart before the horse because what if they need more money? I would
say let them have their meeting, prioritize what they want, then let John’s department put out an
RFP, then we can allocate the funds.

Rick- I will go with you on your motion once they have their meeting and prioritize what needs
to be done first and we put that out for bids, then they could bring that back out to council.

Doug- I am all for helping the Rec. My only problem is 75% of the people that use the Rec Park
are from the county. Okay, I don't think it's fair that we take our money, all of it, 100% and
spend it on the Rec and the county not help us at all. That is unfair to the people, and the citizens
of Richlands.

John- What if we earmark the funds so the Rec Commission knows that money is earmarked for
that purpose. So, they know to go after this grant, because they know they have this certain
amount of money to match it. Or, if you know the money is there when we needed it then you
won't have to rush into spending it this year or the next six months. It would still be the town’s
call and you still must go through the procurement and the council could still have some
oversight, but at least it's earmarked for that purpose, and it gives them a little more freedom to
try to find the best way. Then if you do go to the county or there's a partnership with somebody
else, you would already have the match or whatever it might be. I don't know if it would free up
the Rec Commission for any additional grant funding. But, if you could take $100,000 to get a
$50,000 grant, then you have just increased your value.

Mayor Cury- Is the earmarking the same thing that Jeff is asking for?
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John- It just kind of depends on what you all are wanting to do versus if you put it out for bids,
then you are stuck to those. I am just throwing out another opinion that may give them some
more flexibility. However, it is up to council on how we want to handle the request.

Laura- I just think this is a little premature. Just like the VDOT stuff that we were talking about,
we must prioritize that as well. If we earmark that now, then we are bound to that and what if
something comes up in a bid and they need a little bit more or a little bit less. T am all for seeing
that money go to those bids....

Doug- Can I finish my statement? I was interrupted and never got to finish. My statement was,
Richlands is in horrible shape with the budget. We are killing them with the electric rates, and it
is always Richlands that has to come up with all the money. How much did Tazewell County
get? They got millions on the COVID money. Why is it always Richlands that has to give and
we are in much worse shape than the county. [ am sure the people of Richlands wouldn’t mind if
the county would help. I would say that most of the citizens in Richlands would disagree with
giving all of Richlands’ money and the county is 75% and they are not having to do anything.

Mayor Cury- Doug, would you like a member of council to address the county and ask them if
they would help?

Doug- I just think the Rec Commission should address the county.
Jeff- And I’ll tell you how that meeting will go.

Seth- Jeff said you guys had already talked to the school board. Because one of the things that
we wanted was the tennis courts. I know when I was in school, all the high school matches were
played at the Rec Park. I understand that is not the case now because they fixed the tennis courts
at the high school. I don't know that it would hurt, but I think it might be a good idea. I would
probably send a member of council to the county board of supervisors meeting.

Mayor Cury- I would elect Doug. Doug, you have talked about it, would you be willing to go
talk to them?

Doug- [ think if the Rec Commission wants their money, then they should go to the county. I
think they would pull more weight than just Doug going there and asking. I would just say look
you guys make up 75%, [ think they should help us with these updates.

Kristen- Doug, I think you would be perfect for that.

Mayor Cury- Doug, I am serious. You have said it greatly. I think you need to be the one that
goes.

Jeff- I have went and it didn’t help. So, 1 think Doug should go.

Laura- I think like the way Teen Venture came in with their kids that maybe you could do
something that like.

Jeff- Oh, we have done it with other projects with the county and it doesn’t work. They always
say well if we do it for Richlands then we have to do it for Tazewell and Bluefield and so on.

Doug- I think what got us in trouble to start with was we took care of 40% of the county and
didn’t ask any money for it, and here we go down this path again. We have done this for years.

Seth- I think a lot of that overhead is just like deferred maintenance stuff that we have got to fix.
Have you talked to George with the street department to see if there are any other small fixes?
Could you have them look at that before our next meeting? Just because I know there is some
things and I feel like they could spend a day, or two days and they could knockout a ton of stuff
on that list. But that is the low hanging fruit. That is not the expensive stuff.

Mayor Cury- That's a good idea too but the street department is also pulled in a lot of different
directions.

Seth- I know that and I am not trying to pull them away.

Mayor Cury- There is a motion and no second. Is there a second to Jeff’s motion? There is no
second so the motion dies for lack of a second. Maybe at our next meeting they can give us some
updates on this.
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Rick- Can we put that out for RFP to see what that is going to cost?

Laura- [ think the first step is letting the street department go over there.

Seth- Or let the Rec Commission go one at a time and see what is priority.

Jeff- Well, we did that at our last meeting. The pool, the tennis courts, the fencing and the slide.
Seth- We will put those out for RFP.

Rick- Can we do that?

Seth- I make a motion that we authorize the Town Manager to work with Jeff and the Rec
Commission to craft two RFPs. One for the tennis court and one for the fencing, slides and
resurfacing of the pool with council approval. Rick seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- Does that help you, Jeff?
Jeff- Yes.
Seth- Then we could approve it at the next council meeting.

John- [ don’t think I will have a problem with the RFP for the fencing and the tennis courts, but
the pool is more of a resurfacing? So, nothing architectural or anything?

Jeft- No.

John- Okay, that shouldn’t be an issue RFP wise. We can also meet with George to get an
updated quote on some of this as well.

Doug- How much did the Rec Park bring in in membership from people who live in town and in
the county.

Jeff- [ don’t know those numbers right off. We can maybe do a presentation about the Rec Park
at our next meeting.

Laura- So, when those bids come in those are brought before the council for approval, correct?

Jeff- Of course. Then I thought maybe the Rec Commission could come and make their
recommendation on what they thought,

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- Next, we are on Electric Relief Discussion. Laura?

Laura- I asked for you guys to bring back some options for some electric relief over the winter
until the council next year can address those rates in the next budget.

John~ So Heather and I were talking about this, but we haven't really come back with any
concrete options at this point. I'll let her speak to that. There is fuel assistance and things of that
nature to help people through those winter months and cooling in the summer. [ just don’t think
that is something that we should have the capacity to try to take on. I think the lowest hanging
fruit on this one would be maybe looking at our late fees. Maybe when someone gets cut off
instead of doing a cut off fee, call it a delinquent fee and then change it to a flat fee instead of a
percentage. That might be our best option, but even that, it is an ordinance. So, we would have to
go through that whole process of advertising and doing the public hearings and then approving it.
I think that would be the quickest way to do something that would help those people who do get
behind or forget to pay a bill and then get hit with fees on top of their bill. That would probably
be the best and quickest option that we have come up with.

Kristen- Have you all discussed payment budgeting available for more people?

John- That is something we can discuss. I think the more we do something like that, the more
liability we are taking on for somebody who isn’t able to pay their bills and then leaves town. I
will leave that up to council. I think that would be a different, better option than waiting and
allowing them to be a month behind before we cut them off. It isn’t always the nice thing when
somebody falls behind on the $200 bill, the next month is $500. We have just put them in an
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even morte difficult situation than cutting them off on the original bill. But those are some
options that we can look at. I would just like to know, what are the options that council is most
interested in?

Seth- Why is our late fee so immediate? So, if you do not pay your bill by 4:00 o'clock on the
15%, then you immediately get charged this massive late fee.

Heather- Actually, that's what I've been doing. I've been trying but I have very limited time to
focus on extras and I would have to call this an extra. So, I have been looking on my phone to
see what other places are charging for their late fees? What is their structure set up? I try to focus
on places near here. They don't have to be right beside us, but near here. I agree with that and
that's why I was telling John, I wouldn’t feel comfortable speaking to the specifics, as far as the
payments goes. Your best bet would be to find someplace that would allow payment that you
could call in, and they would take them over the phone like the previous place. With that
website, you could go on there and log in and they would allow payments so people wouldn’t be
late. They pay us immediately, and they are paying them the extra and that's how that company
makes their money. They process the cards and keep the fee from processing the card and then
they are offering that as well. So, we get our money. But they're making their money off the
people that is making those payments dripping it out over time. So, we don't have this offer to do
that, but that is something that they are focusing on. So, that could be an option to look into
something like that. It's an option to restructure and to make what I would call fairer to everyone.
1 would feel like everybody is getting the same treatment, because sometimes I feel like it is
unfair, but those people are home seeing this person getting cut off, they go pay, they don't get
that fee. Or if that person is at work and they get the fee because they didn't see it and so on. 1
don't really feel like that is fair, because they're just as late as that person. They're just coming to
pay and that is the second fee.

Seth- So is it by statue? Is this something that we approve by statute, the amount and what is
charged? Or is it by ordinance or is this just a management decision?

Michael- 1t is in the Town Code.

Seth- So, we would have to change the code to change the late fee structure?
Michael- It is just an ordinance.

Heather- You could change the ordinance.

Seth- But we have to advertise for an ordinance change.

John, Heather, & Michael- Correct.

Heather- But I feel like there is a lot of options and things we can look into.
Seth- How many days can you be late now before you get cut off?

Heather- It varies and that is another thing I would like to look into.

Mayor Cury- I have a suggestion, when people come in to pay their bills and all they have is a
credit card...

Heather- That is an option now. The reason we couldn’t do it before was because we had entered
in that agreement. ..

Mayor Cury- Are they going to be able to do it now?

Heather- I don’t think so. They called last month and said we can’t change to the online
process. ..

John- It is something that we are going to try to figure out to get back to that.

Heather- It is going to have to be something like what they are being charged when they call in.
Really and truly, I feel like if they are coming in, I can see them and verify who they are. With

them calling in, I just think that is going to be more difficult. It is going to have to stay like it is
for now. We definitely don’t want to lose money.
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John- I guess if the late fee and delinquent fee is something you all want us to look at, we can do
that, because then we know a specific thing that you want us to look at. We can then look at
other places and see how they word it and implement it; then come back with some options.

Seth- So the two things that I found to be most disturbing is the late fee, how it is implemented,
and how quickly you terminate someone’s power. There has to be a way that we don’t cut people
off so quickly, and then charge this massive late fee when you are an hour or day late.

Mayor Cury- John and Heather are you all clear on what you all need to look at?
John- Yes.

Heather- Yes, and I have talked to Laura about that before. I hate the way that is set up. If you
see your friend across the street being cut off, even if you are just as late on your bill, if you pick
up the phone and call, and pay then you avoid that cut off fee. Even though you were just as late
as your neighbor because you called before they cut you off; then you avoided that additional
fee.

Seth- The late fee is like 10%. It is ridiculous.

Laura- On the late fee, we could say if your bill is $500 then you pay a flat $5.00. If your bill is
$501 and up, then you pay $10 or $15.00.

Heather- Before we get too far into this, I would just like to know what we need to focus on. So,
late fee and delinquent reconnect?

Seth- Payment plan options

Mayor Cury- Heather and John, would it be easier for you to take this feeling from the council
instead of a direct suggestion right now...

Heather- Well T have been working on it...
Mayor Cury- Then come back to the council with proposals.

John- If that is the direction of the council, we can definitely look into some options and what
places do around us and try to come up with something more equitable.

Laura- Is there something that we can do tonight because we are getting into the cold months,
and I don’t want to see people getting disconnected and at the same time, I don’t want to see the
town losing money either. For instance, don’t cut them off in the winter months if someone is
paying 20% of their bill.

John- People would then accumulate these huge bills that they could never pay and if they move
then we are stuck with that.

Heather- During the winter you can get fuel assistance.

Rick- Yeah, but that usually pays nothing for the average person.
Laura- And that depletes very quickly.

Mayor Cury- So, Laura, you would like something done tonight?
Laura- Yes, anything that we could do...

Seth- Could we maybe extend the cut off? Like instead of cutting people off in 10 days, lets
extend that to 60 days or whatever.

John- I think the complaint would be with that is they are already getting next month’s bill when
you are cutting them off, so they would be like well why do I have to pay two bills?

Laura- But it would have past due amount plus a current amount. So, let’s just do that.

Heather- Let's say you get your bill on the 2nd, 3", or 4. T think they are guaranteed to be to be
in your box by the 1%, but we all know that don't always happen by the Ist. Like this month, it
might have been on the 28™. Well next month it might have been on the 26th. I think that's kind
of a problem for me because [ will forget that we are having to do our cut off today. To me the
26" is much different if you get paid on the 28th. So, I just feel like whatever the 30th is on
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unless it is February then the 30™* would be your last day. Not the 28th but the 30". Unless that
falls on the weekend; then it would fall to that Monday. That is a whole month.

Seth- Can we do that? Do we need something special to do that?

Michael- Any amendment to that would be on the code. I don’t know if that would technically be
a budgetary one for the late fee.

Heather- Basically, it is whatever the bill says, it says you can be cut off by the 20", All of the
bills are going to continue to say that. I can't change that. That is how they have been printed. If
it continues to happen, I guess you can change it later on.

Seth- Who sets the cut offs right now?
Heather- Amanda.

John- If the 20" is on a Friday. we usually wait until the following Monday. We do try to work
with people. We don’t want people coming home from work on Friday and not having any
power all weekend.

Seth- I make a motion to direct our Town Manager, to direct Amanda, or whoever sets this
arbitrary date, that this new arbitrary date be temporarily set for the winter months to the last day
of the month unless it is on a weekend then it would be the next business day. Laura seconded
the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, council. Now we are Town Manager Report.

John- The only thing I have is we are looking into doing roofing RFPs and [ put that out on
EVA. I received a bunch of responses from people wanting the bid packaging so they would
know the specifics and how big the roof is and what kind of roof it is. That is just out of my
expertise, and I didn’t feel that it was fair to have all these people bidding on these projects that
is this complicated. So, I wanted to bring this back to council and see if maybe we can get an
architect to come and look at this and help with this RFP for those four buildings. So, we know
when someone puts a bid in that they are all bidding on the same thing and quality of product.
So, do you all want me to put another RFP out for that or do you want me to just move forward
with the company that we have used in the past?

Seth- Hold up. Why can’t you just get George to come and look at it and see if we can get a
quote on a 12-gage metal for this building and 30-year agricultural shingle?

John- I just feel like it is a lot more, and I honestly don’t know how to put it on paper so that
anyone across the state could bid on the same project.

Seth- You just need to tell them the type of materials that you want.

Rick- Have a job showing. That is what VDOT does, and everyone is on the same page at the
end of the day.

Heather- What is basically happening is this looks like a roof but then there is all this extra space
up there and they can’t tell by all this open space where all these leaks are coming from. You can
look up and that part maybe dry, but you have all this water running down. I don’t know what
that roof is called, but that is here. I don’t know what all these other roofs are. We have actually
had someone from the street department come up here and look at it.

Rick- Just invite the contractors to come up here and do a job showing. They will look at it and
tell you what you need to do.

Mayor Cury- With it being governmental money, I don’t know if it works like that.
Rick- Well VDOT does it all the time.

John- But they have someone there that knows exactly what they are asking someone to bid on. I
just don’t know anything about roofs to answer their questions.
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Mayor Cury- [ have a suggestion, I think we are at an impasse here personally on what we need
to do. I follow what you are saying but to be fair we are a government, and we want to make sure
everyone is bidding on the same thing. I also get what you are saying and maybe we do not have
the expertise in house to be able to do that. I also follow what you are saying that we do not need
an architect. I just don’t think we are ready to do this right now. I think we just need to wait until
our next meeting and discuss this again. We need to find out more.

Seth- Will you at least call George and find out what he thinks and if he is comfortable doing it?
If not then we will go a different route.

John- Yes.

Mayor Cury- I think that is our problem, we are relying on someone for a ton of expertise, and [
am not sure that is his field. Can you report back to us on this next month?

John- Yes, and that is all I have for tonight.
Mayor Cury- Okay, let’s see. Now we have Attorney’s Comments.

Michael- I did receive a phone call this week and I did need council’s direction on whether or not
you all wanted me to look into this or not. My call was from someone at the Police Department
wanting me to have a sit down with them regarding code enforcement and updating codes with
them. Of course, I would need council's blessing to do that.

Laura- Do you need a motion for that?

Michael- I think a consensus would be fine.

Members of Council- You have our consensus.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Michael. Do you have anything else?

Michael- One more thing, with the election next week, there will be two new council members, 1
just wanted to throw that out there. As far as the seats, it would be the seats that Laura is
currently in and the seat that Rick is currently in. So, you all wouldn’t be able to take office until
January 1%, Under these special elections they would take office immediately once they are
qualified.

Laura- Yes, I am aware.
Mayor Cury- Okay, thank you, Michael. Council Reports. These are non-voting items. Doug?

Doug- Last council meeting, we voted to move the electric fund into its own separate account
separate from the budget.

Heather- That hasn’t been done. We have literally had like 3 weeks, and we don’t have an
auditor now. So, there wasn’t anyone I could ask to decide if that was the correct move at this
time.

Doug- I just don’t see the problem. We have a separate account for VDOT. We have admitted
that we have problems with the electric fund, I just don’t see what problem it could be for it to
have its own separate account.

Heather- It is going to be a lot of accounting problems, because overall when you write a check,
in order for that to clear you are going to have to be transferring money back and forth and it is
going to look more suspicious than it does now.

Doug- Why? You shouldn’t be moving money out.

Heather- We are not moving it. We are just writing checks out of it and we have to make sure
they are covered.

Doug- How are you going to do VDOT?

Heather- Again, we are going to have to lock at it and see how that is budgeted in the budget.
But that has nothing to do with the electric, water, and sewer. They all have their own line. They
all have their own reserve and everything else. We do not receive taxes every month to help
cover our bills. So, if we are going to do it that way, then we are going to have to have somebody
else tell me how to do it that way. Because we won't be able to pay the bills.
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Seth- Doug, if you remember that was one of the provisions, and that is they would reach out to
our auditors and see what they needed 1o do and come back with a report. Our auditor resigned
so now they can’t do that.

Doug- Seth, the auditors quit two days ago, and they had all month to do this. It is a question of
they are not going to do this unless we force them to. They are just stalling as usual. They will do
whatever they want to do in their own time unless the council puts their foot down, it is not going
to be done. If you guys can let them do that and not do as we voted, then that is on you. They had
a month to check. They have no intentions of doing it unless we force them to.

Mayor Cury- Doug, let me add this. The motion has the power of a motion, but [ think this is a
little more presumptuous. I think it is not that they don't have any intention. I think they will get it
done. She has explained that it is a difficult process at present. Any further discussion here? Doug,
did you have anything else to say?

Doug- Yes, with this VDOT money, in all due respect to Mr. Taylor, I want you to imagine this.
we have a council sitting down, the town manager comes in and says, we are not supposed to do
this but if you guys are okay with this, we are going to take money out of the VDOT fund and
use it for other departments. Can you imagine? I mean, that is ludicrous. People know me, I
would never agree to that stipulation. I mean as a council member, 1 would never agree to that,
and I don't think any of the others would either. Would you agree with that, Mr. Woods? No. So,
that tells you council did not know that money was being spent other than what it was earmarked
for. That is all I have.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Doug. Okay, Laura?

Laura- At the last meeting, I had asked about the minutes for the other committees not being
posted and they are still not being properly posted. That is a Virginia Code, not just what people
need to see. So, we need to make sure those are being done, please. Also, can I get an update
about the light on Mason Street?

John- It was my understanding that it was put up over a month ago.
Laura- I have driven by and it is still not on. It maybe up but it is not on.
John- 'l follow up with it, but [ think it is a motion sensor light.

Laura- Thank you, also the POW chair has the lights zip tied on and that decal is coming off. The
Veterans dinner is this week, and this has been something that multiple people here have brought
up, is that going to be fixed before that dinner? Because that is a pretty big deal.

John- 1 will get with our guys and see. We will do our best. T am just not sure how much it is
going to take to get those lights in there. I know they were busy last week putting up those
banners, but I will check and see.

Laura- At least that decal. I mean something needs to be done for the Veterans before that. Also,
we had a situation, not to bring up the auditor again, but I don’t know about anyone else, but
found out that the auditor had quit when Kristen put it on Facebook. I do not appreciate being
left out of the loop on that, because we cannot make sound decisions as a 6-member council if
some of us do not have all the information. That is something you really need to consider going
forward. Also, I am not sure if councilman Wood will bring this up, but we visited that house on
Planation Drive, Mr. Yates. Are you going to discuss that?

Rick- Yes.
Laura- Okay, I will let Rick talk about that. That was all I had for tonight.
Mayor Cury- Thank you, Laura. Rick?

Rick- Laura and I visited Mr. Yates, it is like they just sawed out the side of the concrete and the
water is coming out in his yard. The scary part is, there is a transformer there and 1 know we do
not have power over there, but us letting the water run around that transformer is pretty scary.
So, I think the town had already agreed to put the pipe in for the guy, do we have the pipe, John?

John- We may, we may not. I have no clue.

Rick- Well, I think we need to do that. I am thinking about children and pedestrians other there.
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Mayor Cury- Since these are non-voting items, are you just wanting a consensus?

Rick- I think we need a consensus or something and have it on our next meeting’s agenda.
Laura- You can make that motion at the end whenever everyone finishes.

Rick- Okay, I will just wait and do that.

Mayor Cury- Okay, thank you, Rick. Kristen?

Kristen- I just wanted to clarify something that I said in our last meeting. I said it took two phone
calls to get a call through to 911 and Laura researched part of this and what had happened is both
calls were between 10-15 seconds, but the calls were not connecting. It was dead space, and they
actualily had a third person calling when 911 was calling them back because it did connect right
at the end when she hung up. It may have been more phone issues than 911 issues, but still I
wanted to clarify that.

Laura- Thank you.
Mayor Cury- Thank you, Kristen. Seth?

Seth- [ would just like to say that Blake got up here and presented a bleak outlook for our town
and things that is going on, but I just wanted to let you guys know there is some great things
happening. I had an opportunity, a couple weeks ago to go over to the fish farm and it was
amazing. I'll try to get an e-mail to John. The county had sent us a video kind of a rendering of
what it is going to look like. They are moving a ton of dirt, and every 60 seconds a truckload of
gravels is going in. Now that is bringing in a ton of work and one of the things that is exciting to
me about this whole project is that the college became a junior college and that has broughtin a
ton of more people into our area. With this fish farm coming in, you are talking about 500
construction workers coming in over the next few years. That means more people in our
restaurants, more people in our hotels, more people renting houses, and more people renting
apartments. One of the amazing things is we are probably going to have a housing shortage.
They are actually looking at some people affiliated with the fish farm and building some single-
family housing. They will be spending millions of dollars to build single family housing. So, I
feel like that you can always turn on the news and you can see all the terrible, negative things,
but sometimes we need to remember there are great things happening, really good things
happening here. [ want to encourage you guys with that because it was a really great trip. The
second thing I wanted to say was I really appreciate Chief Holt and what he has been able to do
with our Police Department in a month. I just respect you guys so much. There is a lot of talk
about so many people quitting but one of the things I wanted to clarify for some of the citizens is
we did have three officers apply to the Virginia State Police Academy when the former Chief
was Chief, not when Mr. Holt was Chief. So, two of those folks are going on and one decided
because they like working in the department with Mr. Holt that person was going to stay here. |
think that speaks volumes about his leadership and ability. There are some other people that left
that had already applied for other jobs. You can take a narrative and you can make it look like
anything that you want to, and you can say anything you want. Also, you know you can get on
Facebook or Twitter and make it look and appear anyway that you want to but a lot of that is
fake news and a lot of the rhetoric that's happening around this transition with Mr. Holt and our
Police Department has been fake news. We had a lot of good officers there before and we have a
lot of good officers there now. He is bringing in some very qualified, credential people and 1
really believe we are going to see this police force become the best that it has ever been over the
next year. I just really want to say thank you for what you are doing, Mr. Holt. We really
appreciate your hard work.

Laura- Yes, | completely agree with that.
Mayor Cury- Thank you, Seth. Anything else?
Seth- No Sir.

Mayor Cury- Okay, Jeff?

Jeff- Yes, I wanted to thank Chief Holt and the Police Department for the trunk or treat and safe
Halloween. We didn’t have any problems yet that we know of then they had a movie showing
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with Hocus Pocus down at the Green Space. It was really well attended, so a lot of things going
on, especially around this time, so we appreciate everybody's hard work.

Mayor Cury- Thank you, Jeff. Okay, we will move to Mayor Reports. I have two requests and
they have asked me to read them. I'll read as rapidly as I can. These are requests for money.
“Dear Sir, Madam, one person can make a difference and influence the course of human events
how thousands of volunteers can create change. The AmeriCorps Seniors and RSVP program
volunteers at Clinch Valley Community Action have been making a difference in their
communities for 50 years. An estimated 6000 volunteers aged 55+ have served 6 million hours
during the past 50 years. These volunteers have served in food pantries, hospitals, nonprofit
organizations, civic organizations, nursing homes and assisted living centers, veterans’
organizations, throughout community and the Virginia counties of Buchanan, Russell and
Tazewell have worked to address food insecurity. We all know that is a real thing. Individual
transportation needs, home repairs, disaster response, civic improvements, capacity building
through fundraising, free tax return preparation, and they have addressed disabled adults and
elderly citizens, and social isolation through telephone safety checks. These are just a few of the
accomplishments made possible with the dedication of perseverance of these wonderful
individuals, These volunteers, maybe your neighbors, customers, family members, members of
your church, or those in your community or service area. All of our amazing volunteers are
helping to make a difference in the lives of others. Clinch Valley Community Action has the task
of matching 30% of the federal and local yearly budget of the for the AmeriCorps seniors RSVP
program. This amount averages $69,000 annuaily. The RSVP program appreciates local
government support along with generous income support from a variety of given resources.
RSVP staff and volunteers also work together in fundraising activities, which have been severely
limited over the last two years. The task of finding this amount of matching funds annually has
become challenging, just as these volunteers have donated time and energy to create change.
Your generous contribution helps Clinch Valley Community Action continue to sponsor the
AmeriCorps seniors RSVP program and all it means to the community. Please consider making a
special gift to honor and celebrate this program's 50th anniversary. We have enclosed a stamped,
self-addressed envelope for your convenience. If you have any questions about this wonderful
program at the volunteers it serves, contact Susan White, director of Senior Volunteer services.
Thank you for your support, Roberta A. Robin Boyd.”

Now that would involve a contribution of the council, so I am going to sit this over here.

Okay, 1 have a second respect here. “To whom it may concern, I'm a third-grade student. At
Richlands Elementary School. I have been nominated to represent my school and community at
the NYLF Pathways to STEM program in Rayleigh North Carolina. By attending NYLF
Pathways, I will join other motivated students from around the country for an experiential,
envision leadership career exploration program. I've enclosed a sample of our itinerary for your
review. As you can see, this will be a powerful experience enabling me to interact with respected
professionals in various fields while building relationships with students that would be my future
colleagues. Attending this program will allow me to further my interest in medicine and reach
my career goals of becoming a nurse. I maintain straight A’s and [ am involved in cheerleading
and volleyball. I have been granted awards such as Leadership, and a Certificate of Excellence in
math, etc. Imagine if you have been given this opportunity for a life changing experience when
you were in school and were unable to participate for lack of funds. That is why I am writing to
you today. My participation in the program depends on whether I can raise $2,500 in
scholarships. I'm investing every dollar I can of my money to make sure I don't miss out on this
unique experience. I am also taking on extra jobs. This is a third grader. I'm taking on extra jobs
to raise the funds. In addition, through my family, friends and neighbors, I have reached out to
their families and businesses with similar fundraising request. My tuition must be paid no later
than November 30th. Your support for my sponsorship request would be greatly appreciated.
will contact you next week to discuss the possibility of receiving your support. I've enclosed
background materials on the program to answer your questions and help you make your decision.
Please contact Katie McClanahan for any further information.” This is signed Zoe McClanahan
and on the back is the identical letter signed Abigail McClanahan.

I would suggest unless council feels otherwise that anyone who wants to donate could donate
personally. Does anyone have a different opinion of this? Okay, that is the consensus of council
for the Mcclanahan and for Clinch Valley Community Action. Thank you for allowing me to
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read that. There was a special request for me to read that in full and we wish you the best. If
people would like to make an individual contribution, I have all the information right here. That
would be a personal choice.

I just want to say thank you to all the members of the community and the Police Department for
the program for the Halloween and trunk or treat. The Section House had an event, and we want
to thank Ramp Up for the movie that they did at the Green Space. Also, all the other things, and
even our neighboring Town of Cedar Bluff, which did a superlative, bang up job with Halloween
Town. So, it's good to be neighborly and say, hey you did a good job, and we hope they will
recognize what we do t00. So, thank you very much, Cedar Bluff. There were also activities at
the museum. So, I had lots of trick or treaters at my house, not as many as we used to have in
previous years. But | have a lot of candy in my car. That could sound a little leery, but if you
want to go to my car, I'll give you some candy. Doesn't that sound inviting? It is okay, the Lord
gave me my humor. The next thing is we have a program coming up. Veteran's Day on
November 3rd. The real Veteran’s Day is November the 11th. It is going to be a wonderful
program. There will be all kinds of people honoring veterans. This is for all veterans who served
and died and those who have survived. But different than Memorial Day. I have nothing else to
report.

Oh, I did. Sabrina Homes, who is the principal of Richlands Middle School, ask me about getting
some help with the streetlight that they need because there is a public safety danger there at
night. It's particularly dark during basketball games. So, John met with Mrs. Holmes, Miss
McGee, and their custodian, Mr. Hubbard, and we looked at it and John was going to check with
the electrical people. John, have you had an opportunity to do that?

John- I haven’t.

Mayor Cury- Okay, if you would do that and please get back to me if we can be of some help. A
bucket truck or whatever that we need to do. We have enjoyed a wonderful relationship between
the Town of Richlands and Tazewell County Public schools, and I would like to foster that and
continue that relationship. It's very important not to be taken lightly. I don't know what expense
it will incur, but until we know that we can't really say so. I just am asking you, John, to do that.
If you'll find out and then we could meet with her again and say what we can do, would you be
able to do that and get some more information?

John-Yeah. I can do that.

Mayor Cury- Thank you. Then we had a request from Tim to get an official response from
Robinson, Farmer & Cox. I think that is appropriate as well as the e-mail that you received from
the auditor. Would you please send that out to the council?

John- T will.
Mayor Cury- Thank you, John.

Seth- Mayor, Mr. Absher wanted me to remind councilman Ratliff that he and I, when we were
on the Board of Supervisors, we did pay for the resurfacing of the pool. We pulled our district
funds together and fixed the pool. I'm sure Jeff remembers that as well. So, the county did pay to
fix the pool. Mr. Absher wanted me to make sure [ told you.

Mayor Cury- See, when these things come to light, we have to entertain them.

Rick- Back to the Mr. Yates’ pipe and installing of pipe. I make a motion that we fix Mr. Yates
pipe. Doug seconded the motion.

John- So 100% town cost? Or is it 50/50?
Rick- Yes, because I think we are the ones who made the problem over there.
John- And are we going to replace the concrete as well because it's paved over, correct.

Rick- It is paved, but he's going to repave the driveway. All he is wanting is the pipe put in and
just dig across. It is like 100 feet of pipe put in there.
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Laura- Also, we did say to him that from this point on this will be his responsibility. So, we need
to make sure we have something drawn up that says that after that pipe goes in that it is 100% his
responsibility.

John- Can you drawn something up Michael? Basically, saying we are going to replace the pipe.
What size is that?

Rick- 12 inches
John- Is that what is in there now?

Rick- No, 8 inches is what is in there now, but it is stopped up from just how much stuff washes
down.

John- So, you think 12 inches will work?
Rick- Yes, 12 inches is great.

Mayor Cury- So, we have a motion and a second on the floor and John has clarified what the
council's desire are in the motion. Are you good with that?

John- Yes, as long as it passes, I'll have legal draw up an agreement and we will move forward as
directed.

Michael- Is Mr. Yates the landowner?
Mayor Cury- I am assuming. I don't know the details.
John- I believe so, but I will get you the details.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Mayor Cury- Okay, I will entertain a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Jeff- I make a motion that we adjourn this meeting. Rick seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call- Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Rick- Yes,
Kiristen- Yes, Seth- Yes, Laura- Yes. Motion carries -6/0.

Adjourned!! ' /¢ % /7?/
/}}\ J\M\\ \5 ; : 2 Rod;;éy D. Cury, Mayf)r /

Rebékah Hackworth, Clerk
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